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[START RECORDING] 1 

MS. MELISSA HARRIS:  - -.  My name is 2 

Melissa Harris and I'm the acting - - 3 

facilitator for tonight's joint public hearing.  4 

This is the public hearing of the Department of 5 

Education.  - - Community Education Chancellor 6 

and the school districting - - and that's 203.  7 

Tonight's proceedings will be recorded and 8 

transcribed.  Before we begin the hearing we ask 9 

that anyone who wishes to speak during the 10 

public comment portion of the evening sign up at 11 

the table in the back.  - -.  If you have a 12 

question that you would like to be addressed 13 

during the question and answer portion of the 14 

agenda, please write that question on the index 15 

cards provided outside of the auditorium and 16 

submit them to a volunteer at the table.  Only 17 

people who have signed up to speak will be able 18 

to participate in the public comment portion of 19 

tonight's agenda.  All challenges - - are asked 20 

to be here no later than 5:30 p.m.  Now that we 21 

have started if a - -, he or she - - at the 22 

first opportune moment.  We will - -.  The may 23 

be - - officials who arrive at different times 24 

throughout the evening.  - - we will - - so to 25 
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accommodate them at the first opportune moment.  1 

Those who are here to - - the public comment 2 

will be asked to speak first.  I should - - from 3 

the agenda - - the auditorium.  The format of 4 

tonight's - - public hearing will include a 5 

presentation of the proposal and a brief 6 

statement by the - - followed by public comment.  7 

- - will all be assigned - - at the table 8 

outside of the auditorium.  Public comments can 9 

be no longer than - - speech.  Timeliness should 10 

be followed and - - forum - -.  Again there will 11 

be question and answer period this evening.  If 12 

you have a question, then please write your 13 

question on the index cards that are supplied at 14 

the sign in table when you arrived this evening.  15 

While public comments are taking place - - the 16 

questions - -.  Any of - - period.  Some 17 

questions will be asked as I believe from the - 18 

- and others will be - - to the board or to a - 19 

-.  Each of - - individual questions will not be 20 

addressed and this - - addressed in this 21 

evening's forum and just the questions will be 22 

posted on the DOE website prior - -.  If after 23 

the - - hearing you still have questions, we 24 

encourage you to direct them to us by calling 25 
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the phone number on the bottom of the fact 1 

sheet.  That's - - or sending them to us via e-2 

mail to the e-mail address that's also on the 3 

fact sheet.  I would like to now introduce the 4 

panel which has been - - for this - - public 5 

hearing.  Starting from right Deputy Chancellor 6 

Mark Sternberg, Superintendent - - Torres, Tracy 7 

Collins - -, Principal Hewlett, Principal 8 

Fullerton, Principal Garrett, Ms. Robinson, Ms. 9 

- - represents the - -.  I now turn the program 10 

over to Deputy Chancellor Mark Sternberg who 11 

will present the proposal. 12 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR MARK STERNBERG:  Thank 13 

you, Melissa, - - for being here and thank you 14 

to the Principals, Superintendent, - - 15 

President, and other folks who are here to join 16 

us for this important conversation.  Again my 17 

name is Mark Stenberg.  I am the Deputy 18 

Chancellor for the Division of Portfolio 19 

Planning and I'm here to listen.  I want to take 20 

a moment to - - and - - the evening on what's - 21 

- designed to be - -.  Tonight first of all is 22 

not a decision - -.  We do not decide in this 23 

group tonight - - the school.  In fact tonight 24 

is also not a debate.  It is not you know a 25 
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forum for - - or the Department - - events the 1 

people in this room that they are wrong and we 2 

are right.  Tonight is a hearing.  It is an 3 

opportunity for us to continue to gather 4 

important feedback as we approach the decision - 5 

- to be clear as it is clear to everyone and so 6 

we have a hypothesis coming into this discussion 7 

and that is representative that education in the 8 

- - has been posted that proposes the - - of the 9 

school and that is very difficult decision for 10 

us to make and a very difficult proposal for us 11 

to bring to this group of people and to this 12 

community but it is a decision of the--it is the 13 

proposal that we have made and - - to gather--to 14 

continue to gather feedback and intelligence on 15 

whether this is the right and best course.  16 

Tonight there is also a confrontation of varying 17 

difficult set of performance - - about this - - 18 

and I'll provide some details on that.  They are 19 

specified in the education and my statement.  - 20 

- school - - and - - this school that when we 21 

compare it to 39 other schools in the four other 22 

boroughs and here in the Bronx that serve the 23 

student population most similar in - - of this 24 

school to other schools most like it across the 25 
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city with similar proportions of students in 1 

Title 1 - -.  We've - - in all sadness when we 2 

see a school with poor efficiency - - 3 

significantly below - -.  We see a school that 4 

is down - - generating progress for students 5 

when compared to its peer schools.  We see a 6 

school where students and parents tell us 7 

through our survey they don't - - but this is 8 

not a school that they would recommend to their 9 

friends, their neighbors - -.  So that's what 10 

brings us to this evening.  That's what brings 11 

us to our proposal and what brings us here to 12 

listen to the feedback of the folks in this 13 

community.  Just so to add a little bit about 14 

what my - - it's good to be back in the Bronx 15 

although not under these circumstances I would 16 

say.  You know I talk in hearing rooms.  I - - 17 

the portion starting school and meeting - - 18 

principal of school in the Bronx so I know--I 19 

know that this - - and this will be a little 20 

personal to many folks in the room who have 21 

given so much of themselves to make 203 a 22 

success and this is not - - to be celebrating 23 

the positive experiences of the students here 24 

but we are asked to assess the capacity of this 25 
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organization to generate - - results and I 1 

think that the new school - - of the New York 2 

City - - and in a sense that is - - the other 3 

parts of this building certainly in this 4 

district and across the Bronx and so it is in 5 

that context that we come to as many - - discuss 6 

this proposed - -.  So a few technical notices; 7 

then we'll start the - - so the other folks - -.  8 

Again this is you are here tonight to discuss 9 

the - - of M.S. 203.  In addition to this 10 

proposed - - we will be discussing the proposed 11 

expansion of the - - served by the - - Charter 12 

School Bronx - - in this building.  203 is 13 

currently located here in the building as 183 - 14 

- and it serves students in sixth, seventh and 15 

eighth grades.  It admits students to the sixth 16 

grade through the District 7 - - process in the 17 

school - -.  It's a program that - - for 18 

admissions.  - - with the Urban - - League, 19 

Bronx Academy of the - - this evening.  That 20 

will be here from - -. 21 

[Applause] 22 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  Alright now 23 

you have to be quiet.  So in addition to - - 24 

located - - Academy - - and District 75 program 25 
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- - 68 at - - 75 - -.  The 168 - - program will 1 

not be impacted by this proposal.  District 75 2 

includes - - with M.S. 203.  Future students 3 

need - - and will be placed at a different site.  4 

On January 14th, 2013, the Department - - 5 

proposal to be adopted M.S. 203 based on the 6 

performance trends that I discussed and on 7 

February 5th, 2013, the Department published an 8 

amended proposal which provided updated 9 

information regarding the availability of the 10 

school improving - - on the - - which the result 11 

of M.S. 203 status as a priority school in - - 12 

the Department's accountability - - and this 13 

puts this school in the bottom 5% of all schools 14 

in statewide.  Therefore, it makes programming 15 

here eligible for school improvement grant 16 

funding is a federal and state funding through 17 

the United States Department of Education.  In a 18 

separate EIS the Department had proposed to 19 

expand - - process - - charter school - - in 20 

this building - - charter school - - approved to 21 

served grades K through 4 and this - - and in 22 

his proposal was approved success - - charter 23 

school - - serving students in kindergarten 24 

through eighth grade here.  Success brought the 25 
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- - to enroll students starting in kindergarten 1 

through a lottery.  It gives preference to 2 

students who reside here in District 7 while 3 

also setting aside a percentage of seats for 4 

students who are - -.  So before we move to 5 

comments on the - - I just want to quickly 6 

discuss the impact of this proposal on current - 7 

- students if approved.  So if the phase out 8 

proposal is approved to go through, we will no 9 

longer admit students who - - sixth grade 10 

students after the conclusion of this school--11 

the 2012, 2013 school year.  So we will continue 12 

to phase out one grade at a time until June 2015 13 

when it would close and currently sixth and 14 

seventh grade students would be supported if 15 

they choose to stay here at M.S. 203 over the 16 

course of the next two school years.  Current 17 

eighth graders who participate in a high school 18 

or I should say are participating in a high 19 

school - - process in the last high school - - 20 

through the normal Department enrollment 21 

process.  In the last few days the Department 22 

has noticed - - to - - students in families in 23 

the - - with access to higher performing schools 24 

- - in higher performing school if they so 25 
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choose.  So we are--we are pleased to provide 1 

- - families at M.S. 203.  We certainly will be 2 

prepared to support students who decide to stay 3 

at the phasing out organization but again are 4 

pleased to provide those families with the 5 

opportunity to participate in a - - choice 6 

process that will be made available to - - and 7 

other middle schools here in the Bronx and 8 

across the city.  So we have some information 9 

about this at the table outside and are happy to 10 

talk about that with folks who - - this evening 11 

or afterwards if there's - -.  And that 12 

concludes my time.  Again I look forward to 13 

hearing from you.  There is a Q&A portion to the 14 

evening after public comment.  Those of you 15 

interested and posed questions should - - your 16 

cards in and I look forward to taking your 17 

questions to engaging with you this evening. 18 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  We will now have a 19 

presentation by the school's - - School 20 

District. 21 

[Background conversation] 22 

PRINCIPAL HEWLETT:  Good evening, everyone.  23 

Good evening, Deputy Chancellor Sternberg.  The 24 

proposal that is being put out about the phase 25 
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out of Middle School 203, this is about our 1 

possibly our third or fourth series of meetings 2 

with the community with the M.S. 203 staff.  We 3 

met with our students and our parents concerning 4 

this phase out and I probably stated that 5 

naturally as the Principal--as the only 6 

Principal of Middle School 203 since September 7 

2002, naturally I'm not happy about it but at 8 

the same time I am fully accountable for the 9 

data that is presented and the performance of my 10 

school and my students.  We've had tough times 11 

in the past.  We were at one time - - school but 12 

we worked.  We did what we had to do.  We were 13 

taking on service.  Once again I do understand 14 

the data, the nature that we are performing at 15 

the bottom 5% of the population for New York 16 

State and the expectation for myself as the 17 

Principal to get the best performance for my 18 

students regardless of the substantive 19 

population's English language - -, students with 20 

disabilities, students - -, I'm happy to - - 21 

District 7 - - for 20 years and I know at this 22 

point I'm not happy with my performance or the 23 

performance of M.S. 203 and I will publicly 24 

apologize for that for not doing what was 25 
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expected of the community that has embraced 1 

me.  I thank Ms. Torres, my Superintendent, for 2 

her support.  I see a lot of people here.  I see 3 

a state representative, Mrs. Bennett, 4 

representatives from my network, extremely 5 

important the Middle School 203 staff.  I thank 6 

- - publicly for the work that they do and 7 

continue to do and in particular my two 8 

outstanding Assistant Principals, Ms. - - and 9 

Mr. - -.  Middle School 203 is - - will continue 10 

to work to serve and strive to the success of 11 

the students in this community and once again I 12 

do not - - the testing data that is there - - 13 

and my SLT will make a short PowerPoint 14 

presentation.  However I do have to counter the 15 

aspect of the impressive safety for Middle 16 

School 203 - - 17 

[Applause] 18 

PRINCIPAL HEWLETT:  I would ask that - - 19 

with that and I do feel that I worked tirelessly 20 

to provide a safe and comfortable environment 21 

for my students, my staff.  I know what the 22 

survey does say and you're going based on that 23 

data but on a day to day basis I know that the 24 

work that I do to keep my students especially in 25 
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this building comfortable.  It does say a lot 1 

and I know that the other Principals here in the 2 

building, we all work together to communicate 3 

together.  I do want to thank Mr. Garrett and 4 

Ms. Lewis publicly for their work and our 5 

collaboration and I guess as evidenced Ms. 6 

Fullerton of the aspect of the schools working 7 

together within this audience of - - Academy of 8 

- - students are and that's 203 - -.  So I thank 9 

them for their continuity of staying within the 10 

- - and complex.  I think that they really truly 11 

felt different that they would not still be in 12 

the building or any community but they'd still 13 

stay here.  Ms. Robinson of the CEC, her child 14 

was an M.S. 203 graduate so she felt comfortable 15 

enough to have her child here under my watch and 16 

to feel comfortable and safe as well.  And I 17 

think that does say a lot and Ms. Franklin has 18 

known me for over 20 years and she knows the 19 

work that I do for the safety and wellbeing of 20 

every student here in this building and in 21 

particular for Middle School 203 so… 22 

[Applause] 23 

PRINCIPAL HEWLETT:  I really thank you for 24 

letting - -. 25 
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[Applause] 1 

PRINCIPAL HEWLETT:  --Thank you for your 2 

support throughout the years - -. 3 

[Applause] 4 

PRINCIPAL HEWLETT:  Thank you. 5 

[Background conversation] 6 

MR. DEAN GROSS:  Welcome colleagues, parents 7 

and guests.  My name is Dean Gross and I'm 8 

speaking--I'm actually wearing three hats today.  9 

I'm speaking as a representative for the M.S. 10 

203 excellence fantastic hard working school 11 

leadership team, as a teacher with 22 years' 12 

experience in the Board of Ed and the first 13 

person hired at M.S. 203, and finally as a long 14 

time chapter leader in District 7 and a long 15 

time chapter leader in M.S. 203.  Let me give 16 

you a little bit of history.  M.S. 203 was 17 

created to replace I.S. 183 which ironically 18 

enough was also phased out.  I.S. 183 and M.S. 19 

203 are the common denominator; that is complete 20 

and total lack of support from districts and 21 

networks.  For years the staff at M.S. 203 has 22 

begged for additional resources to help our 23 

students.  We know our students are needy.  We 24 

know our students come in with a lot of baggage.  25 
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We need desperately the equipment to handle, 1 

deal with, educate, and counsel our students to 2 

keep them out of trouble.  I dispute as Mr. 3 

Hewlett did the discipline aspect of it.  If 4 

this was a school with bad discipline, you 5 

control just about any - -.  Do we have our 6 

problems?  Yes.  Does every other school have 7 

its problems?  Yes.  If you talk to our students 8 

now, our students look at our teachers as 9 

mentors, guidance counselors even if you're not 10 

a guidance counselor.  Parents - - assistance, 11 

our teachers, our tireless workers for the 12 

benefit of our students.  You could walk into 13 

this building at 6:30 in the morning and see 14 

teachers already at their desks working to 15 

perfect their lessons for the day.  You can walk 16 

around at 5:00, 6:00 at night and you will see 17 

teachers sitting at their desks.  M.S. 203 18 

deserves better than what--than the way they're 19 

being treated.  There is no doubt in my mind. 20 

[Applause] 21 

MR. GROSS:  Thank you.  Instead of helping 22 

us, we now find ourselves with a population that 23 

is very heavy with over aged students.  A 17 24 

year old in the seventh grade should never be 25 
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with no additional resources to help this 1 

person.  And - - population.  We have 304 2 

students.  We have 76 - -.  That ranges from 3 

basically one day in this country to a few 4 

months to maybe a year or so - - discussion with 5 

no additional resources for these people.  There 6 

is an after school program and a one day program 7 

that's run by Mr. - - that is a benefit to our 8 

students but we need more.  We've asked for 9 

more.  We got nothing.  We also have 79 special 10 

education students but many of them are 11 

completely misplaced; totally out of what they 12 

are supposed to be in.  We are told they're your 13 

students.  You take them.  You cannot teach a 14 

class of very disabled students when you have a 15 

child that is constantly disruptive, that curses 16 

out everybody in the room that threatens the 17 

teachers on a daily basis.  It just doesn't get 18 

done.  M.S. 203 is being phased out primarily to 19 

put points on state tests and lack of student 20 

mobility.  Once again, I focus on the lack of 21 

support.  You cannot run a school if you don't 22 

have the support.  The administration cannot 23 

help these teachers help our students unless 24 

they are given the resources to come back to our 25 
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teachers.  Professional development does not 1 

do any good if it stays with two or three 2 

people.  When it's a strategy then that could 3 

help everyone.  It doesn't work.  To come into a 4 

building to me with two or three people, which 5 

is great, and not turn key back the entire - - 6 

to a staff is a crime.  It really is.  You're 7 

depriving our students who need love dearly, 8 

each and every one of them.  You're depriving 9 

our students of the right to a free quality--and 10 

I stress quality--public education and you are 11 

depriving our teachers of their chosen 12 

profession which is to deal with our students 13 

regardless of the type of students.  Now we all 14 

know we have very, very challenging students in 15 

this building.  That does not stop the staff one 16 

bit.  When I.S. 183 was phased out and M.S. 203 17 

was created, much of the original staff was 18 

excess and of course the administration was 19 

changed.  However it stopped at that; no 20 

wonderful innovations purported to help our 21 

students and any attempts that were made by 22 

staff it was a frustrating and daunting task to 23 

try to try to get new and exciting programs 24 

brought in.  The programs that we have 25 
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eventually had to be cancelled due to guess 1 

what, the lack of funding.  We were promised the 2 

moon but what we got was moon dust; not the 3 

moon, little sprinkles of the moon.  Basically 4 

it's a setup to fail.  Our school - - their test 5 

scores.  It is a multi-face, multi-cultural 6 

community; a community where real people live, a 7 

community with education and social needs--or 8 

I'm sorry educational and social needs are once 9 

again not being addressed.  This is a constant 10 

problem.  M.S. 203 is now beginning to teach our 11 

second generation family of students--students 12 

come in and say oh wow.  You're talking - -.  Oh 13 

wow, you're talking - -.  It's amazing to see 14 

that and it's hollow to think that that's going 15 

to be - -.  Our community looks at M.S. 203 as, 16 

despite what's been said, a safe haven and a 17 

place where students and parents for the general 18 

- -.  We are totally respected; a place to come 19 

to help us solve your problems, and a place to 20 

help you deal with real life issues.  And more 21 

importantly, a place where you get a free 22 

wonderful--and I can't stress this enough--23 

wonderful exciting joyful public, public 24 

education is available to all who welcome it.  25 
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That is what this community needs.  They do 1 

not need to have a community school removed from 2 

the neighborhood.  You are limiting our choices 3 

for students.  What's going to happen to those 4 

students, those sixth graders, who now will have 5 

to get onto a public bus and then bus themselves 6 

to another school?  What's going to happen to 7 

them?  Has anyone thought of the impact, the 8 

problems?  It's a negative impact no matter how 9 

you look at it.  We've enjoyed a very good 10 

relationship.  We - - through the years.  I 11 

forget how many years it is but it's been a very 12 

good relationship and we have passed on many of 13 

our students to them as they graduated from us.  14 

However - - is only able to absorb a certain 15 

amount of students each year.  We take in a 16 

certain amount of students each year.  The 17 

equation is not going to balance out.  No matter 18 

how you do it, it's not going to balance.  Some 19 

of our kids and possibly the most needy of our 20 

kids are going to left behind.  It's inevitable 21 

and it's a shame and it's something that I could 22 

not in good conscience let go without saying how 23 

sick it makes me.  It really does.  For students 24 

to be treated like this, for a staff to be 25 
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treated like this, for a community to be 1 

treated like this, for the pure reason of we're 2 

not performing like we're supposed to perform.  3 

We were never given the opportunity to perform 4 

like we were supposed to perform, never.  I'm 5 

not putting the blame on anybody.  I'm not 6 

faulting anybody.  It's a collaborative effort 7 

to work with the school and it's a collaborative 8 

effort to keep the school going.  Somewhere 9 

along the line from top down, that chain broke 10 

many times in many, many ways.  Also and perhaps 11 

most importantly--I promise I'm almost finished 12 

at this point--what message are we sending to 13 

our students?  You failed us.  Your test scores, 14 

they all know.  They're not stupid.  Your test 15 

scores are the reason why we're closing; your 16 

lack of movement, your inability to learn 17 

English within a year of being in the country.  18 

It doesn't matter that you've never been in a 19 

school before.  Yes, we have students that 20 

never, never ever been to public school before.  21 

They come from countries where schooling is not 22 

mandated.  They come here, no English, no social 23 

skills.  Do we turn them away?  Do we treat them 24 

differently?  No, we treat every kid with 25 
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gloves.  What happens to these students when 1 

they get the message you failed us?  You failed 2 

us.  That's the message that sends out.  They're 3 

talking to the students.  I trust even 4 

colleagues as well, my loved and respected 5 

colleagues as well.  This is the message the 6 

students have gotten; not that everything from 7 

the top down something went wrong.  They, they 8 

failed us.  Is this what you want to send?  Is 9 

this the message you want to send to students 10 

who are having a hard enough time getting to 11 

school, getting involved in school?  Every one 12 

of our students is economically deprived every 13 

one of the 304 students.  Every student is 14 

entitled to a free lunch.  We are dealing with 15 

students that come from difficult backgrounds.  16 

We want to put another lump of coal in their 17 

stocking?  How can you do that?  How, how is it 18 

possible for a city like New York to turn its 19 

back?  To turn its back on students, to knock 20 

students out of classrooms for the sake of 21 

another school; not even a public school but to 22 

take space away from public schools that don't 23 

get to pick and choose their students, that 24 

don't get to remove students who are not 25 
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performing well.  If we could do that, we'd be 1 

the top rated school in the city.  We don't have 2 

that luxury.  - - does not have that luxury.  3 

I'm not putting down any schools but the playing 4 

field is not even.  It is not level.  You're 5 

judging us on factors that we have not had the 6 

ability to work to control.  That is a crime no 7 

matter how you say it.  It's terrible what is 8 

being done to this community. 9 

[Applause] 10 

MR. GROSS:  Finally, finally I have two more 11 

quick points.  When every one of our teachers 12 

came in to M.S. 203 they knew the neighborhood.  13 

They knew the students.  Not one teacher said oh 14 

this is going to be a handicap to my teaching 15 

career, none.  Every student--I'm sorry every 16 

teacher from day one and grades every single 17 

student, regardless of that student's ability, 18 

regardless of that student's behavior.  Do we 19 

discipline when we need to?  Yeah, and that's a 20 

whole other story.  We do what we need to do.  21 

We love our students.  We take of our students.  22 

We nurture our students.  Don't take that away.  23 

I'm wondering as I'm standing here is it really 24 

a case of closing the school because of failing 25 
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in the test scores and not moving students up 1 

to what the standard is supposed to be or is it 2 

just a matter of it's easier to shut us down, to 3 

phase us out, and open another school--and again 4 

not a community school--parents you need to know 5 

that.  Is it easier just to shut us down, wipe 6 

your hands of us, forget about us, not care 7 

about who, where, or who gets the - -.  Is that 8 

easier than to invest the money?  I know it's 9 

cheaper but is that easier than investing the 10 

money, the resources, and the energies needed to 11 

bring our students to the height of education, 12 

to bring our kids to the height of learning?  13 

I've got news for you, ladies and gentlemen.  I 14 

think that's the case.  To all of you that are 15 

here tonight on behalf of my school, my 16 

teachers, myself, my colleagues, my family, I 17 

thank you for being here to support us.  I thank 18 

my M.S. 203 staff.  I thank the M.S. 203 19 

administrators for being here.  Thank you.  You 20 

deserve better.  To our wonderful parents who 21 

have shown up, please extend my love to your 22 

kids, to Ms. Della Cruz [phonetic] who's doing a 23 

- - job to try and get - -.  Thank you very 24 

much. 25 
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[Applause] 1 

SUPERINTENDENT TORRES:  Good evening to all 2 

constituents.  Thank you for having such a 3 

beautiful - - and sharing this special - - and 4 

M.S. 203.  My name is Mr. Torres and I am a - - 5 

teacher with over ten years of teaching 6 

experience.  This is my first year at M.S. 203.  7 

As the newest member of this community, I 8 

attended all the meetings in regards to the - -.  9 

I created a presentation that reflects what each 10 

faculty member has said.  This presentation will 11 

first provide you with some information that 12 

will be pertinent in understanding the position 13 

of what is happening in our community.  Without 14 

further ado, the staff of M.S. 203 would now 15 

like to present to all of you M.S. 203 versus 16 

the - -.  M.S. 203 has - - to a - - situation 17 

that is - -.  How - -?  With a higher percentage 18 

of challenging students and fewer resources; a 19 

formula that is disproportional with the - - 20 

children in charter school right into the 21 

ground.  Regardless of the truth the teachers of 22 

M.S. 203 want all constituents to know that even 23 

though we're now getting into a perfect storm, 24 

our students deserve a chance to succeed and 25 
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prosper in life, and that is the reason we are 1 

here.  It's very - - solution to close our 2 

school but rather support our efforts in making 3 

M.S. 203 the school it deserves to be.  The City 4 

of New York has prematurely decided to close 5 

M.S. 203 because of our lack of school 6 

improvement.  There are different perspectives 7 

on school improvement due to the ever changing - 8 

- that it does not - - for constant - -.  9 

Regardless of the - - changes - -, I believe 10 

that we all work - - that will - - and - - 11 

school through research and practices; not - -.  12 

A system that allows for a member of inter-13 

dependent parties that works - - to accomplish 14 

the - - of the system, how the City of New York 15 

- - to close M.S. 203 - -.  It is our - - to 16 

provide a free and appropriate public education 17 

to those persons - -.  Our system is clear.  To 18 

educate and promote sensible - - with a mission 19 

to create other citizens into society but like I 20 

said before it is imperative that the city 21 

becomes a component to work together to 22 

accomplish what I believe is a shared vision 23 

amongst us all.  We're not - - believe is 24 

shared.  Are the - - effective schools to - - 25 



 26 

student performance.  In order to constantly 1 

improve student achievement the - - must be 2 

present; - -, - -, - -, technology and - - 3 

tools.  They say only the best things are free 4 

so that must mean everything else comes with a 5 

price.  There is no question M.S. 203 is - - 6 

every day with the curse of - - succeed in our 7 

mission.  - - to - - in crisis but the harsh 8 

reality is that this cannot be done without the 9 

proper funding.  With that harsh reality also 10 

comes with that, that most of the - - are not 11 

distributed evenly; something that is often 12 

referred to as that's life.  But at what cost, 13 

the cost of our children's future?  If I were to 14 

ask each and every one of you what would you do 15 

if you were given an increase in funds?  - - you 16 

would all have some kind of changing minds where 17 

- - you could change instruction, a change in - 18 

-, talents, materials, or a change in culture.  19 

So now allow me to give you the opportunity to 20 

ask us, the staff of M.S. 203, what would we buy 21 

to increase - - again.  And how we're going to - 22 

- to - - and difficulty.  Increasing 23 

instructional - - is not - -.  It will - - to 24 

engagement.  A - - and instructional - - and 25 
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that - - practices - - feedback and - -.  How 1 

- - and increased funding - - increase student 2 

performance a very good reason why we're here 3 

today.  For some of us the - - foundation of 4 

having a full - - teacher center which we don't 5 

have with highly effective master teachers - - 6 

teachers with the materials and innovation 7 

necessary to have in their toolbox with them, 8 

there is an increase in - - for both teachers 9 

and students that's - - to increase their 10 

performance.  But the truth of the matter is 11 

that the trends of funding to M.S. 203 ceased - 12 

-.  Over a four year period there has been a - - 13 

decrease in money.  From 2009 to today, we have 14 

a percent decrease in funding of over 25% while 15 

student population for the most part has 16 

increased.  This year we're starting with a 300 17 

- - as well as receiving the lowest amount of 18 

money with an alarming decrease in teaching 19 

positions thus creating larger class sizes.  For 20 

the - - each year - - is the way - - the - - in 21 

each class.  In addition to leading this year 22 

the most disproportionate comparison - - student 23 

enrollments, money and teaching position which - 24 

- in class sizes - - results, we are also faced 25 
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with student population that is mandated and 1 

required to have proper services and programs, 2 

approximately one-fourth of the students in 3 

special education, one-fourth the students in 4 

our ELO - -, leaving only half of the student 5 

population to the - - general education; not to 6 

mention - -.  How can we properly serve our 7 

students with such high needs if the school 8 

isn't given the proper funding to do so?  9 

Students with special needs and services, we 10 

have one-fourth of our classes and our self-11 

contained.  Sixth grade self-contained are being 12 

improperly placed.  And our facility does not 13 

accommodate those - - places along with having 14 

no - - social worker.  And again, how can we - - 15 

the needs without proper funding?  So what are 16 

our - -.  More students, larger class sizes, 17 

less teachers, less funding is a formula for 18 

failure from the very start.  It - - and - -.  19 

What happens to all the initial - - we was 20 

promised and as soon as we came - -.  And why it 21 

is acceptable to - - to come to our school, sit 22 

with the students, and never turn key 23 

information to - -.  So I leave you with this.  24 

This is a - - school and if you are not aware of 25 
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- - is, it is long - - and it's different - - 1 

for generating or being born.  Perhaps it's the 2 

universe's way of sending a message to - - that 3 

we can never learn, decipher or comprehend but 4 

with this - - your message should be any clearer 5 

than M.S. 203 is meant to be reborn.  Support 6 

and - - us is the answer.  Thank you. 7 

[Applause] 8 

[Background conversation] 9 

MS. HARRIS:  - - Principal Garrett - -. 10 

[Applause] 11 

PRINCIPAL GARRETT:  Thank you ladies and 12 

gentlemen.  I know we're all here and that some 13 

of us - - serious business but I also just want 14 

to say that it warms my heart to see so many 15 

people who - - on Valentine's Day including the 16 

soon to be newest member of the Bronx - - 17 

Committee - -.  So congratulations - -.  So I'm 18 

- - Garrett.  I'm the Principal of Lawrence 19 

Academy - -.  It is my pleasure to be on this 20 

stage today representing the school I love and 21 

to share the stage with several of my colleagues 22 

who I've come to respect and with whom I'm 23 

enjoying collaborating this year to tackle some 24 

of the - - kind of challenges - -.  It has been 25 
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my distinct privilege to work - - a place that 1 

I've been - - for the last seven years.  I 2 

worked here as a teacher.  I've worked here as a 3 

coach, as an Assistant Principal, but now I have 4 

the privilege of being Principal.  And it has 5 

been my honor to serve this school - -.  I 6 

believe we deserve - - the most amazing, 7 

talented and awe inspiring students - -. 8 

[Applause] 9 

PRINCIPAL GARRETT:  - - is only possible 10 

because of the truly Herculean efforts of our 11 

parents and also - - and our incredible and 12 

support staff.  Ten years ago this year Lawrence 13 

- - in this building as the new - - high school.  14 

We had at that time just 85 ninth graders, 6 15 

teacher, and a single mission to do one thing 16 

and that was to - - young people to lead and - - 17 

effectively so they could be successful in 18 

college, in the workplace and beyond.  Now over 19 

the years we've grown in size.  We've added the 20 

middle school and we worked tirelessly to ensure 21 

that Lawrence - - is a school that provides a 22 

great education to young people.  We never 23 

settled for average or for minimum standards and 24 

we never - -.  In partnership with - - with our 25 
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advisory board, and with the Department of 1 

Education we provided a rich array of experience 2 

which students say is - - to some in the city, 3 

some in the nation, and some of the world's 4 

incredible learning experiences.  From Manhattan 5 

to Morocco, from the - - of Berkley, we worked 6 

to ensure that the education students received 7 

in our school is first rate and in line with 8 

college each and every day.  As we learn today 9 

about the proposals for this building, I feel 10 

it's important to say that Lawrence - - was born 11 

into a - - location from - - and we have found 12 

ways to thrive in it without neighbors.  We 13 

worked carefully to build strong and 14 

collaborative relationships with our colleagues 15 

represented here on stage and with our newest 16 

neighbors from - - Academy Bronx and we will 17 

continue to do so.  Bronx Letters is the 18 

products of the - - commitment to innovation and 19 

to provide high quality options for parents and 20 

the students as they decide what schools to 21 

attend.  This city has a firm commitment to 22 

seeing to it that the people in District 7 have 23 

good options for schools and we in the Bronx 24 

Letters share that whole heartedly.  We are one 25 
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of those good options and we've made it our 1 

business to be just that for the last decade.  2 

As the decision making process that we begin 3 

tonight with this hearing starts to report, it's 4 

important that as we work towards ensuring a 5 

high performing schools are able to thrive in 6 

the - - that the interests of all schools are 7 

protected in advance.  Parents who entrust their 8 

children to Bronx Letters each day should be 9 

able to say with confidence that the process of 10 

proportioning and negotiating around the states 11 

ensures that all schools on this campus are set 12 

up to be successful.  And parents should have 13 

confidence that all schools in this building 14 

have the resources they need, including space, 15 

to provide a great education that far exceeds 16 

the minimum standards.  The proposals we are 17 

hearing today are not in and of themselves 18 

directly about Bronx Letters but they will have 19 

tremendous impact on the experience of the 20 

people who come to school here, on the people 21 

who work here, and the people who come here to 22 

learn about how their children are doing.  As 23 

the - - of education policy considers these 24 

proposals as the powers that be consider them - 25 
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- after a decision is reached, we at Bronx 1 

Letters stand ready to be good faith 2 

collaborators, good neighbors, and willing 3 

partners in ensuring that the interests of all 4 

students are protected and that the families 5 

that we serve stand to benefit from the outcome.  6 

As the leader of Bronx Letters I look forward to 7 

open, productive collaboration with my 8 

colleagues to ensure we get an outcome that 9 

serves the interests of our school and the 10 

interests of neighbors' schools.  The families 11 

of the students in the Bronx and of District 7 12 

specifically deserve no less from us all.  Thank 13 

you. 14 

[Applause] 15 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  We'll now have - - 16 

Ms. - - representing the CEC, Ms. Woodal 17 

representing the CEC - -. 18 

[Background conversation] 19 

MS. WOODAL:  Good evening, everyone.  My 20 

name is - - Woodal, - - of the Community 21 

Education Council for this - -.  I just want to 22 

give a brief description of our council on the 23 

panel first and we were - - and we have - - in 24 

District 7.  Sitting here and just hearing - - 25 
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and everything in regards to M.S. 203 I'm just 1 

upset, I hurt, and I'm just - -.  I'm upset - - 2 

several - - in our schools and I'm sick and tire 3 

of it but I'm very upset and frustrated because 4 

our children are just displaced.  They're - - 5 

the schools here in our district - -.  Okay I 6 

heard everything - -.  - - who not only spoke 7 

about M.S. 203 but every school in this 8 

district, every school in this district. 9 

[Applause] 10 

MS. WOODAL:  Alright so you hear every year 11 

- - sit on the council - - in District 7 and it 12 

never reaches our children and our children are 13 

failing.  The goals and the dreams that they 14 

have does not come to fruition because of the - 15 

- they have in schools and this is ridiculous.  16 

I'm tired of it.  I feel that this - -.  We have 17 

the power.  We have the power and - - 18 

[Applause] 19 

MS. WOODAL:  If we put our - - this can be 20 

stopped.  This can be stopped.  So if we can't 21 

the - - we are - - and we've got to - -.  We've 22 

got to get - - to hear us - - so we can stop the 23 

- -.  Our kids are failing.  Our - -, alright, 24 

our children are very - -.  I'm tired of looking 25 
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in the newspaper and hearing our schools are - 1 

-.  I'm sick and tired of - -.  I'm tired of it. 2 

[Applause] 3 

MS. WOODAL:  And at the end of this day 4 

everyone goes home to wherever they live and - - 5 

and we're the ones that stay here and fight for 6 

our children.  We are the ones who stay here.  7 

I'm tired of it. 8 

[Applause] 9 

MS. WOODAL:  Something has to be done.  I 10 

hope and I can pray that this is getting - - 11 

everybody - - that this - - our children that 12 

they - - and we need our students to make - -.  13 

Our Principals are doing - -.  What is the 14 

purpose?  I'm tired of it.  - - we've had.  15 

Something - - keep the school open.  That's what 16 

we should be doing but unfortunately - -.  Our - 17 

-.  So I - - in the schools.  So now - - we're 18 

losing our middle school and that's the most 19 

important - - our students - -.  We're tired of 20 

it.  I - -.  - - the middle schools are closing.  21 

I can't - - myself - -.  I can't do it.  It's 22 

too dangerous.  I put my child - - everywhere I 23 

live in my community.  Where are the schools?  24 

Where are the middle schools?  What are we going 25 
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to do about that - -?  That's all I have to 1 

say. 2 

[Applause] 3 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you. 4 

MS. FRANCO:  Good evening.  I'm the CEC 5 

President for District 7 but I also have the 6 

pleasure of being President of Bronx Academy of 7 

Letters. 8 

[Applause] 9 

MS. FRANCO:  - - I've been in the Bronx 10 

since sixth grade.  - - and every year we saw - 11 

- because of what we're going to be put through 12 

- -.  The co-location has affected our 13 

children's socially, emotionally and 14 

educationally as well as our teachers.  We've 15 

lost a family that we had in being together - - 16 

over different floors.  - - an enormous hardship 17 

for our staff and our students this year.  And 18 

let me just say, I'm not against charter or co-19 

location.  I'm a proud parent of three - - so 20 

I've been here for a long time.  I was educated 21 

in this district.  I'm going to be 63 years old.  22 

This is where my roots are but you know I - - 23 

and I've seen schools close, and open, is 24 

closed, and open, and - - our children.  Talk 25 
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about the building, we have a lot of homeless 1 

shelters.  Our children are going to be - - our 2 

schools.  They're overcrowded and - - location 3 

wise and our - - for them - - shelter but yet 4 

we're closing schools.  Our children are being 5 

disserviced, have been, have been, will continue 6 

because - - as parents and community leaders - - 7 

is enough.  I know this would never happen in - 8 

- but yet in the Bronx, in this Bronx, it's 9 

always happening.  Take a look to see how many 10 

of our Bronx schools have closed.  Take a look 11 

to see - - students of the - - students to take 12 

a look at our special education.  It's not that 13 

they can't function.  It's how you teach them 14 

but if you don't have the support, our children 15 

are not going to learn. 16 

[Applause] 17 

MS. FRANCO:  We owe the - - as adults and as 18 

children and then we have to have the resources 19 

to teach our children.  And understand that our 20 

community, we have some great people that come 21 

in to teach in this community and some that I've 22 

seen that say it's - - and they hear their - - 23 

kids but they're getting tired of not being 24 

supported.  And actually if you continue to - - 25 
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our - - moments and take more students, what 1 

will you do.  You're not helping our children.  2 

So the Board of Education needs to understand 3 

that, yes, you continue to close our schools but 4 

why.  Give us the money that we need to put our 5 

children in the best.  Don't tell us that you 6 

have to - - every other school.  We have - - 7 

schools.  This year it's unreal but yet we have 8 

four new charter schools coming into this 9 

district so - -.  We have to suffer with our 10 

children.  We don't have the same rights that 11 

our - - have because they have - -.  We don't 12 

have those choices and neither do our children 13 

because the lottery for kindergarten is 800 14 

children.  It's - - because it's open - - so our 15 

children are also - - when it comes to 16 

lotteries.  So what I say, and I'm going to 17 

continue to say, and I say what I mean and I 18 

mean what I say, you're not helping District 7.  19 

What you're doing is - - this.  You want us to 20 

go totally public and forget about public 21 

education.  That's unreal and that where does 22 

the money come from because it's not a taxpayer 23 

system.  We also work.  We also pay rent but 24 

where does our taxpayers' money go.  It's - - in 25 
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our schools.  So - - and we will continue to 1 

support our schools.  It's unfortunate that we 2 

have to go through--this is the second year 3 

we're going - - and our schools are being - - 4 

but it's been over three or four times that 5 

we've been - - for M.S. 203 but they're not 6 

normal.  We have a whole - -.  Look at the whole 7 

picture.  Where are all the kids going to go?  8 

If you go and eliminate it, all of our resources 9 

and our - -.  Where are we going?  If you 10 

continue to close - - it has four schools.  We 11 

have another building that has four schools and 12 

we lose - - the support that we need for our 13 

students.  They need some recreational.  They 14 

need some music.  Look, I know a kid has music.  15 

They have basketball.  They have football.  I 16 

don't see that in our public schools.  And I was 17 

in the lottery, too, so it's not like I just - - 18 

years.  It's still unfair.  All children deserve 19 

a good and equal education.  It's part of this - 20 

-.  Every child should have an equal education 21 

and we need to understand that we have to stop.  22 

Stop closing us in.  Stop trying to make our 23 

children go to - -.  It's just that we can't - - 24 

because we don't have the money. 25 
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[Applause] 1 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  - - and I invited 2 

Rich - - of the U.S. - - and then - -. 3 

MR. RICH BARTLETT:  Hi, Rich Bartlett. 4 

MS. HARRIS:  Oh I'm sorry, excuse me. 5 

MR. BARTLETT:  Hi, everybody, is that 6 

better?  Hi, Rich Bartlett.  I'm the Vice 7 

President of the United Federation of Teachers.  8 

I really can't compete with the speakers that 9 

went before us - - as far as the Principals from 10 

the school, the CEC.  So thank you very, very 11 

much.  And I wanted to thank everyone for coming 12 

up especially the students that are here today 13 

because-- 14 

[Applause] 15 

MR. BARTLETT:  - - to speak and want their 16 

voices heard because you believe that you can 17 

make a difference.  You believe that what you 18 

say is going to affect something and I hope that 19 

does.  I really, really hope that you keep that 20 

dream and never lose that spirit.  You could be 21 

out here and let your voices be heard and make a 22 

difference.  Keep that dream alive.  Keep that 23 

dream alive but the reality--because sometimes 24 

we have to deal with reality--is that decision 25 
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has already been made.  That decision to close 1 

M.S. 203 has been made and as we're going 2 

through the night, even though your voices are 3 

going to be heard, is that after you make your 4 

presentation, there's going to be a meeting 5 

probably in Brooklyn - - sometime in March and 6 

there's going to the panel and everybody is 7 

going to speak.  Everybody is going to pour out 8 

their emotions and at the end of the day the 9 

panel is going to vote to close M.S. 203 and 10 

they're going to make room for a charter school.  11 

Now the reason they're making room for a charter 12 

school is there is money to be made in 13 

privatizing education.  If they were to 14 

privatize education in the United States of 15 

America, it would be a $1 trillion industry.  A 16 

former Chancellor of New York City schools, Joe 17 

- -, went from making $250,000.00 as a 18 

Chancellor of New York State to $5 million 19 

running the Educational Division of News Corp.  20 

News Corp. is run by Rupert Murdoch and the CEO 21 

of success at work that wants to come in here, 22 

her salary is over $500,000.00.  So there is 23 

money to be made and the only way that they can 24 

make that money is to expand.  And they're going 25 
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to expand it at the expense of M.S. 203.  Now 1 

we heard from everybody about the problems of 2 

the students, and the problems of the community 3 

of M.S. 203.  We heard that and they were really 4 

truly concerned about fixing those problems 5 

rather than privatizing education--because 6 

that's what charter schools really do--then they 7 

work with the stakeholders.  They would work 8 

with the community.  They would work with the 9 

parents.  They would work with the people who 10 

want that change.  They would be creating 11 

community schools.  Community schools would be 12 

had.  I heard some of the problems.  It has no 13 

problem at 203.  It has no problem - - race in 14 

the country is right here.  Kids come to school 15 

and they have all kinds of medical issues.  So 16 

why don't we create a community school here 17 

where kids that have medical problems could be 18 

serviced at the school? 19 

[Applause] 20 

MR. BARTLETT:  Kids that have problems 21 

hearing or seeing, dental problems, emotional 22 

problems can be serviced.  This is what happens 23 

if you really, really care about creating, 24 

creating a real quality environment, a really 25 
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quality community in which kids can learn.  So 1 

you know I've gone through this dance for a long 2 

time already and I know your emotions and I hope 3 

they hear your emotion.  I hope the Chancellor 4 

hears your concerns and if you want to bring it 5 

out - - on March 11th I believe, I hope that you 6 

do.  I don't want you to lose that spirit and 7 

that fight.  Keep that fight alive.  You need 8 

that because in a very, very short time we're 9 

going to have an election for a new Mayor. 10 

[Applause] 11 

MR. BARTLETT:  And that election is going 12 

to--it's very serious--that election is going to 13 

change.  That election is going to change the 14 

focus of where we're going; where we're going in 15 

the city.  So to change you're going to have to 16 

become involved in the public arena.  The 17 

community is going to have to become involved in 18 

the community arena, the parents, the students, 19 

the teachers, all of us; because if we want that 20 

real fundamental change, it's going to come down 21 

to the direction where we're going which is 22 

privatizing education--because that's what 23 

charter schools really do--you know that's 24 

successful not bringing in the same students 25 
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that are currently enrolled in 203.  We have 1 

76 special education kids.  They will not take 2 

those students in.  We have 79 ELL students.  3 

They won't take those students in.  They won't 4 

take a 17 year old kid in the seventh grade.  We 5 

know that.  So if you want to continue that then 6 

don't get involved but if you change, then 7 

you've got to get involved politically and you 8 

need that change; so teachers, students, and 9 

parents thank you but keep that fight alive. 10 

[Applause] 11 

MR. STEPHEN BENNETT:  I'm Steve Bennett.  12 

I'm - - Bronx School - - for CSA - - School 13 

Supervisor - -.  I'm going to read a prepared 14 

statement to you.  It's really small so if you 15 

could bear with me I'd appreciate it.  16 

Representative - - and the Principals and 17 

Assistant Principals of New York City and our 18 

members of the - - this hearing as Assistant 19 

Principal's job and - - Principals of the two 20 

schools that are - -.  Ah, there we go.  Thank 21 

you so much.  As a Principal I used to know how 22 

to work a microphone.  So let me read a 23 

statement that comes to you from the Council of 24 

School Supervisory Administrators.  Once again - 25 
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- we have scheduled more than two dozen 1 

schools to closure and the latest - - schools 2 

destined for the scrap heap do not fit into the 3 

particular pattern.  Several have new Principals 4 

who were told they wouldn't have time to turn 5 

the school around.  Several have - - ratings in 6 

the city.  Some have proficient - - and one 7 

actually has a Principal who exceeds 8 

expectations - -.  - - schools it's like a game 9 

of Russian roulette.  This DOE - - is involved 10 

in devastating children and families.  Actually 11 

you heard them people tonight or the CEC made 12 

that very clear - -.  It takes - - setbacks in 13 

relation to previous school closings as well.  14 

They have determined a way for the city's new 15 

schools for reasons of poor academic performance 16 

- - as well.  So coming from families without - 17 

-.  Then the youngsters are warehoused in other 18 

low performing school that will be likely be 19 

closed as well.  This is a failing strategy in 20 

terms of schools - -.  The fact that your - - 21 

children should care - -.  Thank you very much. 22 

[Applause] 23 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  We will - - public 24 

comment.  As a reminder please keep your 25 
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comments to under two minutes with - - staff 1 

member and - - over there.  He will raise a sign 2 

so that you--when you have 30 seconds remaining-3 

-and he'll also let you know when your time is 4 

up.  We want to make sure that everyone's voices 5 

are heard tonight so we ask the you be - - to 6 

those that are here and please keep the two 7 

minute limit.  I would like to now call speakers 8 

with the numbers 1 through 10 to that microphone 9 

over there. 10 

MR. SEAN AHERN:  My name is Sean Ahern and 11 

I'm a New York City - -.  I reside in District 1 12 

and - - to the Bronx because I've been coming to 13 

the hearings like this in District 1 and 14 

districts throughout the city over the past 15 

three years and the pattern is the same.  Many 16 

times there are - - congressional 17 

representatives, city council members, the 18 

Principals, the - - CEC - - who uniformly 19 

applause the - - and the closing of schools.  20 

And it's the agency, the Board of Education, 21 

that is sort of the head agency or the - - 22 

chopping and slicing and closing schools and 23 

pushing charters in.  - - here today the Office 24 

of Portfolio development.  This is the agency 25 
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that for the past almost I guess seven or 1 

eight years has been - - and as the President 2 

and the Vice President of New York he said - - 3 

the DED and - - appointees and it's a rubber 4 

stamp.  And they've doing this for years.  Now I 5 

just want to say one thing because I don't have 6 

a lot of time.  The charter school - - the 7 

school; not only does it - - M.S. 203 that has 8 

been struggling and doing the best that it can, 9 

it's going to kill that but it's also going to 10 

have a dramatic effect on the Bronx - -.  If you 11 

look through this mountain of paper and it's 12 

completely unintelligible, but if you look at 13 

it, in 2015, 16 Bronx Letters is going to have 14 

28 full size rooms and the - - Academy which 15 

will have 32 rooms.  So you know they're going 16 

to be suites.  There are going to be suites and 17 

I urge everyone to come out to the EED.  I have 18 

a petition here.  I urge you to sign it.  What 19 

we have to do is we have to end - - because this 20 

is a system.  They're just rolling over somebody 21 

so I urge to sign the petition and come out to 22 

the - - and - - demonstration - - and the co-23 

locations and stop the closings.  Thank you. 24 

[Applause] 25 
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MS. HARRIS:  Thank you. 1 

[Applause] 2 

FEMALE VOICE:  Thank you.  - - educator of 3 

the Bronx Academy - - who passed - -.  Behind 4 

this stage is a room that's involved - - state 5 

of our school.  In 2008 myself and - - Academy - 6 

-.  We were - - garbage - - raise enough money - 7 

- new equipment - - provided that the state - -.  8 

The sound of laughter and dancing in the - - 9 

resonated - - walls.  - -.  The co-location 10 

resulted in the loss of - -.  - - is a room - -.  11 

- - the table.  Our - - also donated - - as a 12 

reminder of the times.  - - was occupied by - -.  13 

- - last year's lost classrooms and unclaimed 14 

personal items left by the teachers who - - our 15 

school to work in an ordinary teaching 16 

environment outside of District 7 and - -.  But 17 

what about the kids?  What about our kids?  A 18 

seventh grader - -.  He's said to say what about 19 

us?  Who's fighting for us?  The - - tonight I 20 

don't.  We don't.  The Bronx - -.  The Bronx - - 21 

community is - - by a passion for education and 22 

a commitment for - - to find successful - - at 23 

all.  We need - -.  We need to ensure that our 24 

school doesn't face the same fate - -.  Our - - 25 
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absolutely refuse to look like - -.  You've 1 

taken enough.  We shouldn't have to--you 2 

shouldn't force us to work with less.  It is a 3 

disservice to our kids and to the teachers and 4 

administrators who dedicate their hearts and 5 

souls to educating us.  If you don't believe me, 6 

it's a short walk right across that hall.  Sadly 7 

due to the lack of square footage, it's also - -8 

.  - -.  Thank you. 9 

[Applause] 10 

MR. FERNANDO RESTREPO:  My name is Fernando 11 

Restrepo and I live up the road in Melrose, a 12 

community right here in the South Bronx where 13 

many of our students live.  As a resident - - 14 

that this building is located in.  I am 15 

concerned about what goes on here.  I also - - 16 

the teacher - -.  Two of those years teaching 17 

kids with disciplinary problems - - specifically 18 

as a government and economics teacher and now 19 

for about a half year I've had the pleasure of 20 

serving as a Dean at the Bronx Academy Letters 21 

and - - here.  It is because of these things 22 

that I have shared with you and for many more 23 

that we don't have the time for but I would like 24 

to make a few points.  It's a sad day in the 25 
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United States when schools are shut down or 1 

phased out instead of enriched and supported to 2 

succeed and I am deeply saddened that this 3 

district will have one less viable option - - 4 

shut down as one of the proposals - -.  I find - 5 

- in the alternative to enriching and supporting 6 

- - schools is to shut them down and - - the 7 

alternatives and all.  You could at least - - 8 

and divide so many families and communities in 9 

the process.  So as the DOE considers to shut 10 

your school in the South Bronx - - and grant a 11 

charter school - - to further expand in the 12 

South Bronx I welcome - - in our wonderful and 13 

bold and amazing - - public school.  The - - of 14 

Bronx - - does not get short changed.  As a Dean 15 

I have enjoyed the pleasure of working alongside 16 

of - - of P.S. 168 and the - - Academy but I 17 

have also suffered in watching our kids, 18 

parents, teachers, and - - of trying to support 19 

their amazing - - schools in all - - states.  20 

Creating a cohesive school culture in a school 21 

that serves the middle and high school is - - 22 

doing it across - - spaces on opposite sides - - 23 

warehouse, jailhouse - - too tight to stretch - 24 

-.  All this - - of my first born child as my 25 
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wife is experiencing contract change with the 1 

- - I am here to share and work - -. 2 

[Applause] 3 

MR. RESTREPO:  As a - - I have - -.  I want 4 

you all here to imagine how cramped it is for 5 

all of us in this building.  It is far less 6 

comfortable than - -.  - - PSA - -. 7 

[Applause] 8 

MS. HARRIS:  - - 9 

FEMALE VOICE:  On behalf of all - - Spanish 10 

school within the - - complex.  We are seeing 11 

here again - -.  Last year our - - go through 12 

that.  We were going - - because they - -.  We 13 

felt like we had no say.  We were scared, 14 

frustrated - - and they - - and opportunities 15 

would be - -.  - - say that we didn't like - -. 16 

FEMALE VOICE:  - -.  - - when the class of 17 

2014 - - school - -.  We - - problems associated 18 

with the - -.  We lost teachers who don't like 19 

the way the school was going, smaller 20 

classrooms, larger class - -, less time for - - 21 

and conversations with teachers at - -. 22 

FEMALE VOICE:  In conclusion we want to say 23 

that - - the schools in this area are offering a 24 

- - education - - problems like this.  We - - 25 
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our voices to be heard and - - so that our 1 

school can be successful and - - success in 2 

offering the best education possible as well. 3 

[Applause] 4 

MR. CHRISTIAN CLARKE:  Good evening and 5 

thank you.  My name is Christian Clarke and I 6 

teach eleventh grade at - - and I coach the 7 

girls' basketball team and I direct the school 8 

plays here and five times a week I - - on that 9 

stage behind you.  So I think it's a very good 10 

thing that we are gathered in this auditorium to 11 

discuss the importance of now you want space.  I 12 

want you all to know right now I don't know.  13 

Did any of you can see our play last year - -?  14 

You should have.  It was amazing.  Our students 15 

were wonderful.  And I want you visitors to know 16 

that the stage behind you is a magical space.  17 

That space - - ancient Greece.  That space is in 18 

1960s - -.  That space - -.  And in - - back 19 

yard but we have done more than just transform 20 

this space.  We have transformed all the spaces 21 

in our school community.  We have transformed 22 

the classrooms.  We have transformed the - - 23 

with our sweat and tears over our - - and our 24 

heart breaks.  And when I think about it, - - 25 



 53 

transformed.  We have consecrated this space 1 

and because I am the - - teacher I want to tell 2 

you what the word consecrated means.  It's a 3 

great word.  It means to make safer.  It means 4 

to dedicate a purpose to something.  And tonight 5 

we have come here to honor our dedication to our 6 

space.  We have come here tonight to ask you to 7 

respect the fact that you are sitting on our 8 

holy ground and we want to continue doing good 9 

work so I hope you allow us to keep our ground 10 

that we have consecrated.  Thank you. 11 

[Applause] 12 

MS. KEYSHA CHRISTOPHER:  Thank you, thank 13 

you.  Hello, my name is Keysha Christopher and I 14 

am an honor roll student and - - for the girls' 15 

basketball team.  I am junior - -.  I was one of 16 

the first sixth grade students of the - - 17 

school.  - -.  One of the school and buildings - 18 

- which was one of the reasons why we can't have 19 

our - -.  - - or students to have a senior class 20 

with four seniors that meet with more students 21 

than we did and - - the newly constructed - - 22 

size classrooms in the middle with no windows.  23 

Although I - - are well ventilated I've give any 24 

one child the opportunity to learn in a 25 
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comfortable learning environment.  One of my 1 

other main concerns is separation of Bronx 2 

Letters classroom.  Also the high school and 3 

student classrooms are as - - of the building 4 

with - - on the third floor.  One of the reasons 5 

why I decided to stay at Bronx Letters High 6 

School is because I felt comfortable.  By the 7 

time I got to the ninth grade I - - my high 8 

school teacher even better some of the high 9 

school students which they needed to transition 10 

into my new - - area.  Now being a junior I 11 

would like to - - who they are which is they're 12 

the school committee - -.  It also - - to see 13 

that our seniors have to stay outside during any 14 

weather because there is no supervised 15 

classrooms - -.  I will be a senior next year 16 

and don't know how I'm going to take time to eat 17 

my food in the snow.  Also during lunch time we 18 

have to wait in the hallway until the other 19 

school leaves, have - - the cafeteria - - ready 20 

for us to come in which takes about 15 minutes 21 

or our lunchtime.  This is no way to go.  Being 22 

here for almost seven years Bronx Letters has 23 

become an important part of my life and although 24 

school can be a drag as every teenager would 25 
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agree, I can - - changes forced upon us to 1 

change the school that I have grown to love.  2 

Thank you. 3 

[Applause] 4 

MS. HARRIS:  - - testimony so if you would 5 

like to submit - - testimony, please feel free 6 

to get samples over - -. 7 

MS. ASHLEY CRUZ:  Good evening.  My name is 8 

Ashley Cruz and I'm a junior at the Bronx 9 

Academy Letters.  I'm an honor roll student, in 10 

the student government, and a big part of the 11 

Arts School.  When I graduate here in 2014 I 12 

will have - - seven times - - better school.  I 13 

was fortunate enough to be first ever to at 14 

Bronx Letters.  Maybe - - the system what I 15 

asked for was to go to - - school - -.  I'll 16 

probably - -.  I realize as a new school student 17 

I will get - - comfortable with the building and 18 

high school teachers so that - -.  I knew that 19 

being at Bronx Letters for high school was the 20 

right choice for me.  Unfortunately I believe 21 

that the new school students here are not - -.  22 

Several changes have been made to the building 23 

in the last year and several more of these 24 

changes will be made.  Our school is not - - the 25 
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building breaking the - - that the - - has 1 

worked very hard - -.  These changes are not 2 

made through the work of people at this school - 3 

- but because you were forced to accept a third 4 

school.  - - has not been--is not the same place 5 

it was five years ago.  Not only does this 6 

affect me now but this will affect my future.  7 

What I want to be--what I've always wanted to be 8 

is a dancer.  I was a major - - and make it my 9 

career choice for the rest of my - -.  At - - my 10 

schedule.  This has never been true in my six 11 

years of being at this school.  Last year I was 12 

- -.  I was - - but I was allowed - - during 13 

lunch.  This, too, is no longer true.  During 14 

our lunch period the other school is having gym 15 

in the - -.  Due to this fact there are no 16 

members - -.  Not only have those - - to the 17 

bathroom but the room has changed.  It is not 18 

the room that has been such a big part of my 19 

life.  What's going to happen when our - - and 20 

we'll always be heard for decisions that 21 

determine our future.  Overall Bronx Academy 22 

Letters is not the - -.  The changes have 23 

frustrated me.  Every - -.  My track meet 24 

teacher sat and - - and asked - -. 25 
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[Applause] 1 

MS. NAOMI CRUZ:  Good evening.  That was my 2 

daughter. 3 

[Applause] 4 

MS. CRUZ:  - - My name is Naomi Cruz and I 5 

am the proud single mother of Ashley Cruz.  She 6 

has been a student here at Bronx Academy of 7 

Letters since the sixth grade.  And I sat here 8 

in front of - - to voice my opinion as an 9 

advocate for her.  I am very disappointed 10 

because I have - - for this - -.  You see it's 11 

been a struggle for me in trying to find the 12 

perfect balance of - -.  You come home.  You get 13 

- -.  It has been frightening and overwhelming 14 

yet rewarding.  Single or not I am a parent and 15 

the most important - - that I can - - are the 16 

love, my love that I have for my children.  I 17 

have heard her and I have a 23 year old.  My 18 

wisdom and the common sense - - along the way is 19 

what I do best.  One of the best things that has 20 

happened - - come home from school and listening 21 

to the wonderful and exciting news on how their 22 

day went.  You see in the past Ashley always 23 

came home with - -; excitement in having a good 24 

time in school and how she anticipates having 25 
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better days.  She talks to me about the 1 

relationship she has with all her teachers, how 2 

comfortable she feels, what she says out in the 3 

hallways to greet her classmates.  She felt safe 4 

with going down to the cafeteria as long as she 5 

was surrounded by the familiar friends of her 6 

day.  My daughter loves and has a passion for 7 

dancing and actually - - with all the teachers; 8 

you know - -.  She's been to South Africa.  9 

She's been to London with - -.  And I can't tell 10 

you anything more than I'm very disappointed.  11 

It's fortunate that she has this - - the 12 

transition.  So my main concerns are will my 13 

daughter--will my daughter continue to have the 14 

same expectations she has since she first 15 

entered?  Will she continue to move forward and 16 

have potential?  Will she - - to have the same 17 

insurance?  You see all of these important 18 

issues are my concern and I never asked a 19 

question before but now I want to - -.  Thank 20 

you. 21 

[Applause] 22 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you. 23 

MS. SHAKIRA SCOTT:  Thank you, everybody.  24 

My name is Shakira Scott.  I'm a junior at Bronx 25 
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Academy Letters.  I'll be reading a statement 1 

from my mother who was not able to be here.  To 2 

the faculty, students and parents, I am the 3 

mother of Shakira Scott, a junior at Bronx 4 

Academy Letters.  I apologize for my absence but 5 

I had a prior obligation and which conflicted 6 

with the time of the hearing.  I do feel it is 7 

necessary to provide you with this written 8 

statement.  My daughter has been a student at 9 

Bronx University since the sixth grade.  She and 10 

her fellow classmates of 2014 will be the first 11 

graduating class that's started at this school.  12 

I was so excited for her to attend the school 13 

because the academic culture, the dedicated 14 

staff, and the focus on college readiness.  15 

Unfortunately I have seen a decline in the area.  16 

We have the most valuable classroom space which 17 

has - - by the school.  This has affected the 18 

moral of students.  I'm sure that the staff have 19 

also been affected.  Being from an educational 20 

background I can testify to the importance of 21 

school spirit and how much school environment 22 

has an impact on testing and grades.  I know 23 

that when a school begins to lose classrooms 24 

year after year it usually means that the - - on 25 
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the verge of pashing out the school.  I would 1 

like to see the school safe from that - -.  Our 2 

children deserve a school that is safe and well 3 

equipped.  Bronx Academy Letters is - -.  To the 4 

- - districts to buy and - - conduct businesses 5 

of future leaders.  I wish to send to my 6 

daughter to the school as many other parents did 7 

because of the small class settings.  The - - 8 

children do better in a classroom with smaller 9 

student to teacher ratios.  We felt Bronx 10 

Academy Letters - - the space - - our children 11 

and - -.  Thank you for your time and attention 12 

- -. 13 

[Applause] 14 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  - - 11 through 20 - 15 

-, 11 through 20. 16 

[Background conversation] 17 

MS. HARRIS:  Please proceed. 18 

MS. KELLY OVERTON:  Good evening.  I'm Kelly 19 

Overton.  I'm - - to the librarian here at - - 20 

Bronx Academy Letters - -.  At the school 21 

dedicated people - -.  We believe that young 22 

people who are educated - -.  And at - - open 23 

doors for people.  - - actually let people 24 

understand the work - - and they know which door 25 
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to walk through - -.  So - -.  And when I 1 

first came to Bronx Letters eight years ago I 2 

was actually - - to the school.  I was working 3 

as a librarian - - library - - the New York 4 

Public Library - -.  When I walked into the 5 

classroom into the school I was really 6 

impressed.  So impressed in fact that I decided 7 

to go back to grad school one more time - -.  So 8 

I decided to go back to grad school one more 9 

time so I could be certified to teach so that I 10 

could actually work in this school.  So, yeah, I 11 

did that.  I love that.  And then - - school 12 

that is dedicated to the power of the word.  We 13 

were starting to work really hard to raise 14 

enough money so we could actually open a library 15 

in our school.  So we were able to do that.  It 16 

was in September of 2009 after we - - a little 17 

over $500,000.00 from private foundations and 18 

the - - office we were able to retile the floors 19 

on all of the first floor of the building and 20 

put a really nice - - mural that welcomes 21 

students into the building every morning that 22 

really was - - the word - - and a bunch of other 23 

important words.  And so - - in a school that - 24 

- but allowed me to do the rare job of 25 
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maintaining the library in a public school.  1 

My - - the other school still stands - - you 2 

really need to start - - other spaces like - - 3 

was talking about, what's happened to the - - 4 

and how - - talking about how difficult it is to 5 

- - art season so I will - - representatives and 6 

I feel the importance of - - not of - -.  I 7 

don't know if you - - but - - really important - 8 

- in our school and - -.  I just wanted to put 9 

the word out - -.  Thank you. 10 

[Applause] 11 

FEMALE STUDENT:  Good evening.  I'm also a 12 

Bronx resident that was - - sixth grade which 13 

was - -.  We were the first in the school class.  14 

I - - Academy and she did recently decide that 15 

she wants to come - - give support.  I just 16 

wanted to say that - - being that she does go to 17 

the school.  This is a - - decided she was going 18 

to come but she didn't have to decide.  We 19 

understand that Bronx - - the eighth grade but - 20 

-.  We want all the school to really - -.  Since 21 

- - the number of students in the same classroom 22 

have increased.  It's getting harder to - - and 23 

harder - - being that - - this year I want to go 24 

to a great college and I want to make sure that 25 
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I have an opportunity to have the grades and 1 

the standards needed to get into the college - - 2 

without the - - the classrooms only get bigger 3 

and harder to manage.  There have - - first, 4 

second and third floors and not being able to - 5 

-.  As a result - - school - - new classroom - - 6 

and they don't have windows and - -.  Not only 7 

that but - - the classes are real tiny and have 8 

- - students - -.  I think I - - but each school 9 

and - - divided equally because - -.  Thank you. 10 

[Applause] 11 

MS. JAZMINE GONZALEZ:  Hi, my name is 12 

Jazmine and I'm a senior at Bronx Academy 13 

Letters.  As a Bronx Academy Letters senior I've 14 

- - school for four years.  As a new - - 11 have 15 

- - becoming harder.  Our - - have caused 16 

classes to be held - -.  My - - class is being 17 

taught in the science classroom.  The gym is 18 

also occupied and there's little free time for 19 

sports teams to practice and classrooms are full 20 

beyond the normal limit of classrooms - -.  My 21 

senior class is - - to graduate on - -.  This 22 

school has been who I am.  To take away space 23 

from us is wrong.  This school builds us.  We're 24 

- -.  We are the future.  Because of all these 25 
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different - they send us - - around the nation 1 

this school is changing lives and if you make us 2 

smaller, if you take away our classrooms or our 3 

- - you make it harder to get - -.  Do you 4 

realize how hard that is for us?  Do you realize 5 

how hard it is for the teachers and the staff 6 

who work so hard here?  We deserve better.  We 7 

deserve room.  We deserve to grow as 8 

individuals.  Thank you. 9 

[Applause] 10 

FEMALE VOICE:  Hi, I'm - -.  - - but there 11 

is only one problem, space.  The space at our 12 

school is very small and seventh and eighth 13 

graders have to share - - whereas only seven 14 

classrooms - - along with 60 students.  Also - - 15 

are active - - of the school such as the 16 

auditorium, gym, - -.  Another thing the 17 

classrooms are very small and we tend to get - -18 

.  The - - of a successful academy - -.  For 19 

example - -.  The division of our school is - -. 20 

[Applause] 21 

Good afternoon, everyone.  My name is - - 22 

and I am - - Academy Letters since the sixth 23 

grade.  - - I've been - -.  I've been - - and I 24 

was at the Bronx Academy - -.  Now I'm - - I 25 
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don't know half the people in my school.  - - 1 

classroom.  This is - - there are way more - -. 2 

Another problem with change is that there are so 3 

many kids - - that we aren't all getting our - -4 

. 5 

[Applause] 6 

MALE VOICE:  - -. 7 

FEMALE VOICE:  Can't hear you. 8 

MALE VOICE:  The - -. 9 

FEMALE VOICE:  I can't hear him. 10 

MALE VOICE:  Hey use the microphone. 11 

MALE VOICE:  - -. 12 

[Background noise] 13 

MALE VOICE:  - -. 14 

MALE VOICE:  Slow down, slow down. 15 

MALE VOICE:  - -.  We all have - -. 16 

[Background conversation] 17 

FEMALE VOICE:  All we ask--all we ask is 18 

that you need to put - - and try to - - what we 19 

have to say. 20 

FEMALE VOICE:  Last school year the Board of 21 

Education - - Bronx - - into the building - - P. 22 

168 - - and Bronx Academy of Letters.  - - being 23 

unsafe - -.  Not only did the - - our school 24 

often but class sizes were even greater and the 25 



 66 

students were unable to focus.  And with 1 

classrooms that big the teachers didn't have 2 

time to support all the students' needs.  - - 3 

have information.  So - - trying to focus and 4 

trying - - trying but not succeeding.  More and 5 

more students were unable to - - so they can't 6 

reach - -.  - -.  And you know why?  Because we 7 

had teachers sharing classrooms.  The teachers 8 

have less time - - their lesson plans.  All of 9 

the space - -. 10 

[Applause] 11 

FEMALE VOICE:  - -.  Each student - - 12 

special gift.  - - to express their feelings - -13 

.  I had to - -.  Our future - -.  - - that 14 

special place - - studying music, studying - -.  15 

- - why you - - here which is - - school for the 16 

teacher that want - -.  So - - there are the 17 

test grades - -.  We want the school - - too.  I 18 

- - to that school - - music, art, 19 

extracurricular along with - - opportunity so 20 

that - -.  Thank you. 21 

[Applause] 22 

MS. ANDREA DANIELS:  Good evening, 23 

everybody.  I'm Andrea Daniels and my daughter - 24 

-.  I've been in the Bronx Academy less than 25 
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three years as a parent - -.  I saw - -.  I'm 1 

sorry to hear that - - school - - may be phasing 2 

out.  I have - - that school and I - - school - 3 

-.  That hurts, okay.  Also here in the Bronx 4 

Academy of Letters - - the space this is taking 5 

- - last year when you - - the school.  - - I - 6 

- to speak to my daughter - -.  It was very hard 7 

to do.  I used to - -.  I didn't even know - - 8 

the Bronx Academy of Letters - -.  This changes 9 

so much.  My daughter - - so much over - -.  I - 10 

-.  P.S. 369 - - school.  It's - - and - -.  I 11 

saw the - -.  It hurts.  It's affected the - -.  12 

She don't want to go to school but she's strong 13 

- - because of all the emotional stuff that's 14 

affecting her - -.  And I - - I still say - - 15 

but I don't feel safe - - outside the - - family 16 

with the - -. 17 

[Applause] 18 

MS. DANIELS:  - -.  Thank you. 19 

[Applause] 20 

FEMALE VOICE:  My name is - - and I'm coming 21 

here to - - middle school - - as a resident of 22 

the - -.  I have two main points today.  First 23 

our school, Bronx Letters, has already - -.  24 

Bronx Letters is - - and Mr. Clarke and - - with 25 
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Ms. Fullerton and the librarian that our 1 

school has labored to provide a variety of 2 

enriched programs in the space.  Without - - the 3 

number of classrooms - - to a location that has 4 

- -.  - - constructed classrooms and I - - rich 5 

hands on learning assignments, education 6 

programs - - and after school - - in that same 7 

room in the space over here because 8 

unfortunately - - as they did last year.  The 9 

classes are being - - few rooms that we get - - 10 

room and we get more - - in the rooms than we 11 

did last year.  The resources available to our 12 

school should not be reduced at the expense of 13 

incoming or - - schools.  My second point is 14 

this.  This is not only a school that I love and 15 

I'm committed to but it's also a neighborhood 16 

that I love and I'm committed to.  I've lived in 17 

- - for the past four years and I decided to 18 

live here so - - the community for years to 19 

come.  The majority of the middle schools in 20 

this neighborhood are - - and charter schools.  21 

There are only a few remaining middle schools in 22 

District 7 that - - as examples by continuing a 23 

situation where the majority of middle schools 24 

in the neighborhood can't do that - -.  We are - 25 
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- mismanaging - - whole families.  To continue 1 

to close community schools in favor of - - 2 

schools and charter schools is unsustainable and 3 

unethical.  So let's - - and the future of Bronx 4 

Letters - - that we insist on continuing our 5 

right to the resources that allow us to provide 6 

enriching quality education.  - - consider the 7 

long term - - closing - - schools which is 8 

unethical and unsustainable and undermines the 9 

efforts to all - - education - -. 10 

[Applause] 11 

MR. CASEY HARRIS:  Hi, I wanted to add a 12 

couple of quick thoughts.  My name is Casey 13 

Harris and I'm a science teacher here at - - 14 

school at the Bronx Academy of Letters.  - - I 15 

think we've demonstrated how much the community 16 

loves the school and I know people - -.  So I'll 17 

try to make this quick but - -.  The school, 18 

I've been here for--I've been teaching here for 19 

nine years and it's--it's just interesting what 20 

I've seen over the time that my tenure at first-21 

-sometime in 2004 you know the school - -.  - - 22 

Joe - - was the Principal - - profile - - 23 

magazine when - - was a successful publications 24 

and Bloomberg was - - and you know news crews 25 
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were here all the time and just to see what 1 

we've done - - we keep pushing more to - - such 2 

hard work and now the message just sort of just 3 

changed for our school somehow.  We're still 4 

really I think a very successful school and so I 5 

think the point I'm making - - so again - - 6 

schools that are not - - the greatest as us - -.  7 

- - so - - I do not - - like our science classes 8 

and - -.  It has - - stuff in it.  I have a 9 

picture of myself if you want to see it.  - - 10 

the last point that I want to make that actually 11 

has been - - there were certain changes over 12 

years here - -.  I just wanted to you know be 13 

very clear for the record in the administration 14 

of - - right now I think is excellent and the 15 

school is in very good hands and I just think 16 

it's important to this discussion.  Thank you 17 

very much. 18 

[Applause] 19 

MS. LINDSEY THOMAS:  Good afternoon.  My 20 

name is Lindsey Thomas.  I'm in the eighth grade 21 

- -. 22 

[Applause] 23 

MS. THOMAS:  Imagine somehow comes into your 24 

home and takes everything - -.  That's what 25 
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you're doing - - but - - saw someone come in 1 

and breaking up family.  Well that's what 2 

happening to us.  Bronx Academy of Letters - -.  3 

The high school is on the first floor.  The 4 

seventh and eighth grades is on the second floor 5 

and the sixth grade is on the third floor.  6 

That's - - because it should be a - -.  By - - 7 

you will be breaking up - -.  Thank you. 8 

[Applause] 9 

MS. ELANA EISEN:  Hi.  I'm Elana Eisen.  - - 10 

and - - Bronx Academy.  My - - is ten years old 11 

and I worked here in this building with these 12 

other schools.  The students - - for six of 13 

those ten years.  As one of the - - we - - but 14 

we, the students, and the teachers and the 15 

parents, we need the space and the resources and 16 

- -.  Yet - - challenge that face - - possible.  17 

Such - - layoffs of school support staff, not in 18 

the budget cuts, rising numbers of - - transfer 19 

students, and this year we're dealing with a 20 

serious - - with no clear end with sight.  While 21 

the - - say that our enrollment will be 22 

unaffected and that it will - - to operate - -, 23 

our experience - -.  Already our school has been 24 

hurt deeply by being separated over three floors 25 
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in spaces that - -.  You've heard already a 1 

couple of times tonight.  With the current - - 2 

services for our school community.  For example 3 

our - - teacher quit - - and she was forced to 4 

provide speech - - in the hallway and - -.  This 5 

hurts our students and our staff especially if 6 

there - - in the middle of February - - and 7 

learning - - has been slow - -.  It's very 8 

difficult to - - four schools to share space in 9 

a reasonable - - of time but results - -.  10 

Sometimes - -.  - - schools in District 7 11 

instead - - choices.  We can't continue.  Our - 12 

- cannot continue to be one of those good 13 

options without any control or say in how - -.  14 

And no - - option when our schools - -. 15 

[Applause] 16 

MS. EISEN:  - -.  I - - and so are my 17 

students. 18 

[Applause] 19 

MS. JENNIFER ELLISON:  My name is Jennifer 20 

Ellison.  I'm - - at this hour - - eight years 21 

in the city, fifteen years overall.  My 22 

boyfriend - - Los Angeles.  I've worked in many 23 

inner cities and the - - are the same.  I think 24 

my experience is that I'm caring.  I'm someone 25 
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who chose to move in the city - - in spite of 1 

the high crime index and in spite of being the 2 

poorest congressional district.  I chose to live 3 

down the street from what I work because I know 4 

how important it is for students to see me not 5 

only during school but after school - - on my 6 

way to 99 - -.  Then I when see them the next 7 

morning I could tell them, yeah, I saw you last 8 

night.  - - and good morning, now sit down.  All 9 

of that - - are important and I did that.  And I 10 

did that intentionally.  So I'm speaking on 11 

behalf of the parents who may not know what's 12 

happening to themselves the way I can so here's 13 

what I have to say.  First of all, happy 14 

Valentine's Day to all of you.  - - having to 15 

wear - - some arrow I think that was intended to 16 

choose tonight of all nights - -. 17 

[Applause] 18 

MS. ELLISON:  - -.  I think this night had 19 

been chosen for that necessary - - particularly 20 

on a day before their weekend where they've got 21 

the time to process this.  Tomorrow is Friday.  22 

It's - - business so goodbye, so long, case 23 

dismissed.  That's not being - - like that.  I 24 

want to give a shout out to - -. 25 
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[Applause] 1 

MS. ELLISON:  I'm uncomfortable with this 2 

home that was - - but my - - was a favorite - -.  3 

That was a special shout out - - to Bronx 4 

Letters.  And what is now has happened - - it's 5 

not pitting one school against the other.  We 6 

are still within the same community.  It's stuff 7 

it's - - and nobody - - that.  The kids feel it.  8 

It's not - - of the parents who were supposed to 9 

be here but could not attend - -. 10 

[Applause] 11 

MS. ELLISON:  Everything - - I point to and 12 

it's not - -.  I - - where I can get the type of 13 

services.  This is where I live, where I have to 14 

go to Manhattan or - -.  So I feel firsthand the 15 

lack of the resources.  - - saw a couple of 16 

misprints that some people would like - -.  I 17 

happen to be - - the co-location on page 7.  18 

Look, on page 11 what I'm looking at is - - 19 

saying that we have the same population of kids 20 

in other schools in the city is simply not true.  21 

If you look at the chart, we do not compare with 22 

schools - - 11, 10, 12% of such - - for the past 23 

- -. 24 

[Applause] 25 
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MS. ELLISON:  So don't insult my 1 

intelligence by telling me that our school is 2 

like a specific.  It is not. 3 

[Applause] 4 

MS. ELLISON:  - -.  On page 7 it says - - 5 

that this proposal would have an impact on 6 

enrollment in other element and middle schools.  7 

How is that possible?  Don't lie to me.  Again 8 

don't insult my intelligence.  And one thing it 9 

says something about - - of their students.  10 

Hello, based on what I've just said, this is not 11 

true.  Stop insulting the members of this 12 

community.  Stop insulting the members of this 13 

school, those are - -.  Don't insult athletics.  14 

We're in this boat together and, hey, I hear all 15 

the same conversations.  I do.  You know I don't 16 

- -.  I - - for a long time.  I - -.  So I feel 17 

your pain - - and I would like - - because I 18 

think personally - - because - - so this - -. 19 

[Applause] 20 

MS. ELLISON:  - -.  I can speak to the 21 

Principals. They don't know what's going on so 22 

who exactly am I speaking to?  Who is hearing 23 

this?  The - -?  So I say to all of you, I say 24 

let's continue this together and Bronx Letters 25 
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is - -.  Yes, - - so this is something that we 1 

- -.  Thank you. 2 

[Applause] 3 

FEMALE VOICE:  - -.  I am the District 7 - -4 

.  There is nothing you can tell me about 5 

District 7 I - - and I don't want to hear that 6 

you can't provide services but I hope the EIS - 7 

- and the teachers agree that the special needs 8 

students and ELLs have not - - services and, 9 

Deputy Chancellor, look at my face because I am 10 

- -.  I - - closing schools.  I was a - - and I 11 

heard you say how you're not going to close down 12 

a school that is - - 203.  You failed - -.  You 13 

don't - -.  It's interesting that the system's 14 

committee for children shine a light on the 15 

neediest parts of the city where we saw - -.  16 

Guess what - - came up second in terms of not 17 

having resources because of the poverty.  And - 18 

- the EIS report and this is going - - good 19 

because we set this all and the DOE says that 20 

they are going to provide--they're going to help 21 

- - by providing - - and - - and support - - of 22 

the school and the students.  Too little too 23 

late.  You talk about it in the newspaper - -.  24 

How come there wasn't a moral imperative to 25 
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provide resources for M.S. 203?  This - -. 1 

[Applause] 2 

FEMALE VOICE:  --because the DOE has no - -. 3 

[Applause] 4 

FEMALE VOICE  - -.  I would like to state 5 

this - - my child - -.  This is - - that teaches 6 

her and other students.  Mr. Hewlett, I said it 7 

before and I'm going to say it again.  You were 8 

the best in the class - -. 9 

[Applause] 10 

FEMALE VOICE:  - -.  I know - - my daughter 11 

- -.  - -.  The people that work here - -.  All 12 

the people - -. 13 

[Applause] 14 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  This now concludes 15 

the public comment portion of this evening's 16 

agenda.  We will move into question and answer 17 

period. 18 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  Thank you, 19 

Melissa.  There were actually, there were 20 

questions formally by - - cards and we want to 21 

take a few minutes to respond - - this evening.  22 

And - - this is--in a way this is two 23 

conversations that come together and this is 24 

reflected in some of the comments - -.  I first 25 
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want to speak--I want to speak to the folks 1 

from M.S. 203.  You've made as I would accept a 2 

spirited and enthusiastic and heartfelt 3 

expression of support for your school and that 4 

has been heard.  You've eloquently described the 5 

challenge as you see it and I want to commend 6 

the SLT on putting a lot of work into a 7 

presentation that is very clearly as a former 8 

teacher, principal was heartfelt and that to 9 

your Principal as well.  So I want to 10 

acknowledge that and to thank you for the time 11 

you put into the presentation and the hard work 12 

that you've been doing.  And this I know whether 13 

- - last night or here tonight - - 203 this is 14 

something that - - and you can't help but take 15 

personally because of the personal opinion you 16 

have made; whether you've been here for two 17 

years or ten years to making this school a 18 

success.  So that is clear in your constant 19 

presence this evening.  And it is something that 20 

as Deputy Chancellor in my conversation with 21 

Dennis Walcott, our Chancellor, and in as we 22 

move forward with our deliberations, I will take 23 

that into a tough decision.  I do want to 24 

address some of the substantive points that were 25 
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made and to again make an effort to explain 1 

how we arrived at a night like this and a 2 

proposal like this.  Our - - process to get a 3 

good decision looks at all manner of data and - 4 

- data - - and we received valuable quantitative 5 

input this evening as we have throughout our - - 6 

process.  Our analysis of the student 7 

achievement trends here--again as I mentioned up 8 

front--are troubling.  And we do that in the 9 

context of what we call - -.  I want to take a 10 

minute to describe that - -.  We do not compare 11 

M.S. 203 to any - - schools citywide.  We 12 

compare the performance of the school to 39 13 

other schools actually include Bronx Letters; 39 14 

other schools that serve a student demographic 15 

most like this one.  And that is measured by - - 16 

status is measured by the whether a child needs 17 

special education services, is learning English 18 

as a second language, and is under credited for 19 

the age or grade level of which they have 20 

enrolled.  And what we see here, despite what we 21 

heard this evening from the many who care so 22 

deeply about the school, we see as we analyze 23 

the data that we've collected, our data - -, is 24 

a school that is struggling, a school that when 25 
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it is compared to other schools that serve a 1 

similar and in some cases higher number of 2 

special need students, a similar number of 3 

students who are learning English as a second 4 

language and so forth, we see a school that with 5 

the same resources and support is not producing 6 

good outcomes for students.  And so we have to 7 

confront that.  You're helping us to do that 8 

this evening.  This is an extraordinarily 9 

difficult decision and proposal to make; not 10 

only that brings any joy to us but I do want to 11 

give a context to it as we--in explaining how we 12 

arrive at a decision like this.  This is - - 13 

about resource allocation in the school and - - 14 

pointed out that a decrease in funding of I 15 

think it was 25% over the course of the last 16 

four years at this school.  The way there is - - 17 

but let's unpack that a little bit if we can.  18 

Every school across the city has experienced a 19 

what we call a reduction in funds and that is 20 

hard for everyone, hard for every Principal.  Up 21 

here at - - when I was Principal and nothing 22 

we've ever wanted to do to a school.  So part of 23 

the - - protection that has happened here has 24 

been sadly applies to every school in the city.  25 
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And there is no - - about thing.  The most 1 

significant portion though of the - - to us at 2 

M.S. 203 is the result in a decrease in 3 

enrollment.  And as many of you know the 4 

Department who operates the funding adheres to - 5 

- which means that the students who choose to 6 

enroll in a school - - at a school.  And so as 7 

the school's enrollment increases or decreases, 8 

so too does its budget and that carries through 9 

- - accounts for students with special needs.  10 

So the higher the designation of need, the 11 

higher the level of funding would be provided to 12 

the school.  And so what we've seen over the 13 

course of the last four years is a decline in 14 

the early 30% in enrollment at the school and a 15 

loss is going to be commensurate with that that 16 

again is driven by a funding formula that is 17 

applied virtually across the city.  So we will 18 

continue to struggle and confront the data that 19 

we see here and we'll continue to engage the 20 

parents - - the community as we move forward 21 

towards March 11th and a vote.  So I now want to 22 

turn my attention to the Bronx Letters-- 23 

MS. HARRIS:  - -. 24 

[Background conversation] 25 
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MS. HARRIS:  Just the question period is 1 

over now. 2 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  Yes, but do 3 

you have no questions? 4 

MS. HARRIS:  No, the question period is 5 

over. 6 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  Question, 7 

yeah, what's your question? 8 

MALE VOICE:  How can you stand up there and 9 

- - the data that you were just shown - -?  10 

You're going to apply it to my teachers and - - 11 

my teachers?  You saw that our student 12 

enrollment has maintained for the past four 13 

years and right now we have - - students and 14 

you're telling us that we're taking a 25% cut?  15 

Do me a favor, okay?  Number one-- 16 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  [interposing] 17 

So let me show you--I understand, I understand. 18 

MALE VOICE:  Number one, I need you to pay 19 

attention and look at me because I'm insulted 20 

about the fact that you have not paid attention 21 

to half the things that are said here.  Number 22 

two-- 23 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  [interposing] 24 

I have been - - hearing-- 25 
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MALE VOICE:  [interposing] Stop the lying, 1 

stop the lying-- 2 

[Crosstalk] 3 

MALE VOICE:  We're closing it to give a 4 

charter school space.  That's the reason why.  5 

Let's say it like it is. 6 

[Crosstalk] 7 

MALE VOICE:  They pick up the phone.  They 8 

call and they say we need space, boom, we close.  9 

Why are we closing?  Because we're not 10 

conforming like we should.  Nobody looks at - - 11 

data.  Everybody looks at test scores and 12 

student - -.  That's it.  That's all you care 13 

about.  So let's call a spade a spade and then 14 

say it right.  We know.  We were all told that 15 

this is a waste for us.  We were all told that 16 

but the dedication of these people, not one 17 

person walked out of here.  Don't lie.  It is 18 

what it is, okay, and I am so insulted right now 19 

you have no idea.  And I'm sorry - - if I'm 20 

speaking out of turn but I'm speaking for the 21 

staff of - -. 22 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  And I 23 

appreciate the comment and I appreciate your 24 

concern and we're - -. 25 
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MS. HARRIS:  You're speaking out of turn. 1 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  - - for - -. 2 

[Crosstalk] 3 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  --and now the 4 

thing is all - - students. 5 

[Crosstalk] 6 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  So let's--I'm 7 

going to turn my attention if I can for a moment 8 

to the Bronx Letters discussion for the evening. 9 

FEMALE VOICE:  Excuse me, the question 10 

period is over.  The questions are over. 11 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR STERNBERG:  Thank you.  12 

I'm going to address the Bronx Academy of 13 

Letters.  Thank you very much.  Very briefly 14 

what I will say here is to the Bronx Letters 15 

community is that you know one of your teachers 16 

in here was Mr. Clarke describe his - - as holy 17 

ground, consecrated ground, and I - -.  I 18 

haven't had any myself - - school and - - been a 19 

Principal here in the Bronx and having learned 20 

from him and worked closely with him, Joe 21 

Sullivan, and the group of - - the school and 22 

needed - - made this place - -.  I celebrate his 23 

success here at - -.  I went - - Principal is 24 

that it is - - that we need to come back 25 
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together and talk about the space in this 1 

building and that we are prepared to do that but 2 

we wanted to do that - - makes this and keeps 3 

this school open.  So we look forward to a 4 

productive and healthy - - and we'll reach out - 5 

-.  Thank you very much. 6 

[Applause] 7 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  We have heard your 8 

many specific comments here this evening and we 9 

- -.  The information that we've heard said will 10 

be shared with the - - educational policy which 11 

will have its hearing on March 11th, 2013, at 12 

the Brooklyn Technical High School - -.  Public 13 

- - facilities prohibit leaving e-mail and - - 14 

until March - - at 10:00 a.m.  You may submit - 15 

- via phone by calling 212-374-5159 or by e-mail 16 

at d07proposals with an S @schools with an S . - 17 

- .gov.  This information is also included on 18 

the fact sheet that was provided this evening.  19 

We thank you all for coming.  This - - public 20 

hearing is officially adjourned. 21 

[END RECORDING] 22 
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